PUBLIC PROTECTION AND SAFETY POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Minutes of the meeting held at 7.00 pm on 30 June 2015

Present:

Councillor Alexa Michael (Chairman) Councillor Chris Pierce (Vice-Chairman) Councillors Julian Benington, David Cartwright, Will Harmer, Samaris Huntington-Thresher, Kate Lymer, Tom Philpott and Michael Tickner

Terry Belcher—Co-opted Member

Also Present:

Nigel Davies, (Executive Director of Environmental and Community Services) Superintendent David Tait, Councillor Tony Owen, Councillor Kate Lymer

STANDARD ITEMS

28 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

Apologies were received from Runa Uddin (Victim Support).

Apologies were received from Mr Alf Kennedy (Neighbourhood Watch).

Apologies were received from Precious Adewunmi (Bromley Youth Council).

Apologies were received from Cllr Richard Williams, and from the Borough Commander Chris Hafford.

29 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Cllr Cartwright declared an interest as a member of the London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority.

30 APPOINTMENT OF CO-OPTED MEMBERS

Report CSD15064

The Committee noted that Bromley Youth Council had elected a new representative to serve on the Public Protection and Safety PDS Committee, and this was Precious Adewunmi.

It was further noted that Ms Runa Uddin had been nominated by Victim Support to serve on the Committee as a Co-opted Member.

RESOLVED that both Precious Adewunmi and Ms Runa Uddin be accepted onto the Committee as Co-opted Members.

31 QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS AND MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ATTENDING THE MEETING

No questions were received.

32 MINUTES OF THE PUBLIC PROTECTION AND SAFETY PDS COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 8TH APRIL 2015

The Committee considered the minutes of the meeting of Public Protection and Safety PDS Committee held on the 8th April 2015.

Cllr Benington asked for an update on the current situation with "Waste 4 Fuel" following on from the previous minutes concerning the Portfolio Holder Update.

The Executive Director of Environmental and Community Services informed the Committee that the Environment Agency was taking legal action against the land owner in an attempt to get the land owner to relinquish possession of the land. It was noted that as at April 2015, the cost of clearing the land was £2m, and that the Council had been provided with a cheque for £1.8m to carry out the clearance. It may be the case that this cost had now increased, and more money may be required from DEFRA (Department for the Environment, Food and Rural Affairs). The future disposal of the land would be a matter for Member consultation.

Cllr Benington also asked if enough action was being taken against "Skunkworks". This was the premises that LBB and the police had previously taken action against because they were selling New Psychoactive Substances (legal highs). The Executive Director of Environmental and Community Services felt that LBB had been proactive, and that the measures taken against "Skunkworks" had been successful. LBB were now waiting for the new legislation to be enacted.

RESOLVED:

(1) that the minutes of the meeting held on 8th April 2015 be agreed.

(2) that an update report on Waste 4 Fuel be provided to the Committee at the meeting on the 15th September 2015.

33 MATTERS ARISING

Report CSD 15060

The Committee noted Matters Arising from previous meetings.

The Committee were appraised by the Head of Environmental Protection that there had been a delay with the upgrade to the CCTV system. The delay had been caused by legal problems with the contract. The contractors were not on site, but it was still hoped that works would be completed by September 2015. The concern currently was that the existing system was old and not supported, and there could be a problem with getting parts in the event of a breakdown. Cllr Cartwright requested that Members be kept informed if any adverse cost implications developed.

The dates of the visits to Orpington Fire Station and to the Community Rehabilitation Company in Orpington were confirmed.

RESOLVED that the Matters Arising report be noted, and that Members be kept informed of any adverse costs around CCTV if they occurred.

34 UPDATE FROM VICTIM SUPPORT

This item was withdrawn from the proceedings.

35 CHAIRMAN'S UPDATE

The Chairman updated the Committee as follows:

The Chairman met with officers on the 23rd June 2015 to discuss the work programme for the Public Protection & Safety PDS Committee. The Chairman was looking forward to a productive working relationship with officers and the police. It was noted that a joint meeting was scheduled for the 14th July 2015 with the GP&L Committee to discuss problems associated with the night time economy in Beckenham and Bromley, and to review licensing policy; the police would be attending to present and to answer questions. The Chairman outlined the planned work programme for 2015/16.

The Chairman informed the Committee that on the 21st June 2015, she observed proceedings (together with Cllr Lymer) around the Emergency Planning Exercise that took place in Bromley. It was noted that on the 23rd May 2015, the Chairman (along with Cllr Tim Stevens, Cllr Lymer and the Police Cadets) canvassed the public concerning concerns about crime in Bromley. Cllr Lymer emailed the results to Members on the evening of the meeting.

RESOLVED that the Chairman's update be noted.

36 POLICE UPDATE

The Deputy Borough Commander (Superintendent David Tait) updated the Committee as follows:

The Committee were directed to the MOPAC (Mayor's Office for Policing and Crime) report that had been tabled concerning "Bromley Safer Neighbourhood Board Performance Summary". The Committee studied the table on page 2 of the MOPAC report which detailed recorded crime data to April 2015.

The Committee were pleased to observe that there were percentage decreases in the areas of robbery, burglary, theft from persons and motor vehicles. They were also glad to see that there had been some percentage decreases over the last year in the areas of gun and knife crime.

However, over the last year there had been percentage increases in the levels of violence with injury, criminal damage, violence against the person, assault with injury, rape and sexual offences, youth violence, domestic abuse and homophobic crime, and the Committee were concerned about these matters, and puzzled by the increase in sexual violence. The Deputy Borough Commander spoke about each specific crime type, providing the Committee with commentary on the reasons for the respective increases.

The Committee heard that there had been an increase in the number of offences involving motor bikes and motor scooters; the police were using off road bikes to try and combat this in green areas.

With respect to criminal damage it was the case that 40% of these offences involved the breaking into of motor vehicles; the main areas that these offences were being committed in were St Mary's Cray, Mottingham and Penge.

The Deputy Borough Commander referred the Committee to page 16 of the MOPAC report and elaborated on "stop and search" distinctions and targets. He also outlined "Operation Omega" which was a MET wide operation to infuse the streets with police officers, especially in problem areas. This had yielded good results. The Committee were reassured that dedicated Ward Officers were not being removed, and the idea of the operation was to avoid secondary investigations.

During the morning of Friday 19 June, police were alerted to aggravated burglaries committed in Barton Road, Sidcup and further addresses in St Georges Road, Bromley; Greenways, Beckenham; Hayes Way, Beckenham; Edward Road, Bromley and Camden Park Road, Chislehurst.

The four suspects were using two mopeds, armed with samurai swords and crowbars. Police stopped a minicab in Downham a short while later, arresting two men and subsequently recovering over £630,000 of stolen property, two

mopeds and a number of weapons. Two suspects were still being sought in connection with the burglaries.

The Deputy Borough Commander updated the Committee concerning fighting that broke out involving a very large number of youths in the Oakley Road area of Bromley. There had been a party that was well run with door staff in attendance but was escalated via social media. It was thought that many of the youths involved had come from Lewisham. Three youths suffered stab injuries, and one was glassed in the face. A car was seized by the police, and investigations are ongoing. It was felt that the incident was not gang related.

The Deputy Borough Commander updated the Committee concerning the recent visit of the MET Commissioner to Bromley Library. The Commissioner was questioned about the proposed budget cuts and their future impact on policing in Bromley. It was noted that the annual cuts to the grant from the Home Office would make things very hard to manage by 2020.

It was expected that the police would have to make cuts of \pounds 800m to its \pounds 3.5bn budget over the next four years. This was in addition to cuts of \pounds 600m made over the last four years.

The Deputy Borough Commander informed the Committee that there had been a recent increase in officer numbers within the CID portfolio, and this was achieving good results as the police were using detectives on the initial investigation, to ensure all investigative opportunities were explored at that time. The importance of good forensic work could not be overstated. It was noted that over the last year, there were 1650 cases of residential burglary, and 932 that were non-residential.

The police had identified crime hotspots, and these were:

- Orpington Town Centre
- Bromley Town Centre
- Hospitals
- Penge
- Schools

The Chairman expressed concern over the data that showed that violence with injury figures seemed to have increased for Bromley Town Centre. The Deputy Borough Commander responded that alcohol was a big problem in most of these cases, alongside the granting of late night licences, and that the police had finite resources.

Cllr William Harmer felt that people were now more confident to report domestic abuse and sex related crimes to the police. He felt that LBB needed to work more holistically as a council in tackling crime, and that there were areas where the Renewal and Recreation Committee and the Environment Committee could get more involved.

Cllr Tony Owen felt that it was important to determine the root cause of the problem. The Deputy Borough Commander was of the opinion that it was difficult to determine the root cause without sufficient analytical data. Cllr Owen informed the Committee that a report was drafted in 2004 by Durham University entitled, "Profiling the Night-Time Economy: Bromley Town Centre". He requested that Mr Paul Lehane access a copy of this report for distribution to Members.

Cllr Samaris Huntingdon Thresher expressed concern regarding the "red" areas on the MOPAC report, which detailed areas where crime levels had increased. She asked what LBB could do to be more pro-active and make the best use of officer resource. She also referenced the empty shop units in the high street, and made the point that LBB should pay attention to what business types were considered for the occupation of those units. She expressed the view that Bromley had reached saturation point as far as bars were concerned, and that it may be better to leave units vacant, rather than occupy them with more businesses selling alcohol.

The Deputy Borough Commander elaborated on page 16 of the MOPAC report concerning Stop and Search statistics; Cllr Cartwright asked if tangible data existed for clear up rates; the Deputy Borough Commander had brought this data to the meeting with him, and this was passed to Cllr Cartwright for his attention.

The Deputy Borough Commander informed the Committee that there were very few vacancies with the Safer Neighbourhood Teams, and that there were no vacancies with CID.

The Vice Chairman expressed his thanks to the police for what he regarded as excellent work in the Cray areas, stating that the population living in those communities were beginning to feel safe again.

RESOLVED:

(1) that the update from the Deputy Borough Commander be noted.

(2) that LBB should try and work holistically to resolve crime related problems, and that the PP&S PDS Committee should seek the involvement of the Renewal and Recreation Committee and the Environment Committee as appropriate.

37 GANGS UPDATE

The Gangs Update was given by the Deputy Borough Commander.

It was noted that the Gangs Sub Group had met on the 27th May 2015 at Bromley Police Station.

The Gangs Sub Group consisted of:

- David Tait—Bromley Police
- Peter Sibley—LBB Anti-Social Behaviour and Gangs Lead Officer
- Barbara Godfrey—Oxley NHS Trust
- Pat Jennings—LBB Youth Offending Services Manager
- Jane Bailey—LBB Assistant Director of Education
- Kevin Clarke—Bromley Police
- Kay Weiss—LBB AD of Children's Safeguarding and Social Care
- Sara Bowrey—LBB AD Housing Needs

Superintendent Tait explained to the Board that the main driver for the formation of the Gangs Sub Group was the Peer Review report on Gangs that had come from the Home Office. An action plan had been formulated from the recommendations of the report, and 15 actions had been identified to progress—some of these had already been undertaken. The 15 action points had been detailed in a report tabled by Superintendent Tait at the meeting. Actions that had already been progressed included the mapping of gang activity and the increase in the size of the Police Gangs Unit, and challenging the behaviour of young people where appropriate.

Superintendent Tait had formulated a strategy for dealing with gangs, and the key aspects of this strategy were:

- Prevention
- Intervention
- Enforcement
- Leadership
- Co-ordination

Superintendent Tait briefed the Group concerning an organisation that he had contacted called Growing Against Violence (GAV). GAV was the largest serious violence prevention initiative of its kind in the UK. It was a public health and safety programme, delivering evidence based preventative education sessions. It provided age appropriate sessions delivered universally to students in school years 6 through to 10.

The Committee were informed that the Gangs Sub Group of the Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group would be meeting again soon. The Committee requested that relevant feedback from the SBP be filtered back into the PDS Committee. The Committee felt that the proposed work with GAV was very positive. The Committee agreed that there should be a presentation on Gangs in the future, and that this should be incorporated into the Work Programme.

The Executive Director of Environmental and Community Services pointed out that where matters arose concerning young people, it was important that the Education PDS Committee also be involved and informed. The Committee noted the need for cross communication across the Council and for a holistic approach. The Deputy Borough Commander indicated that he was happy for the PP&S Portfolio Holder or PP&S PDS Chairman to attend the Gangs Sub Group meetings.

The Portfolio Holder for Public Protection and Safety requested that in in the future, the previous minutes for the Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group be incorporated as a standing item on the agenda.

RESOLVED that:

(1) the Gangs update from the Deputy Borough Commander be noted

(2) the minutes of future meetings of the Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group be added as a standing item to future agendas

(3) that all relevant information from SBP meetings be filtered into the PDS Committee

(4) that a future presentation on Gangs be incorporated into the Work Programme

(5) that the Education PDS Committee be kept informed of any developments concerning young people.

(6) the PP&S Portfolio Holder or PP&S PDS Chairman to attend the Gangs Sub Group meetings.

HOLDING THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER TO ACCOUNT

38 QUESTIONS TO THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND COUNCILLORS ATTENDING THE MEETING

No questions were received.

A) BUDGET MONITORING

Report FSD 15041

The Budget Monitoring report 2015/16 was written by Claire Martin, Head of Finance. The report provided an update concerning the latest budget monitoring position for 2015/16 for the Public Protection and Safety Portfolio based upon expenditure and activity levels up to the 31st May 2015.

The budget was balanced, and the latest approved budget figure for 2015/16 was £2277k.

RESOLVED that the Portfolio Holder endorse the latest 2015/16 budget projection for the Public Protection and Safety Portfolio.

B) PROVISIONAL OUTTURN 2014/15

Report FDS15040

This report was written by the Head of Finance to inform the Portfolio Holder of the final outturn position for 2014/15. It also showed the level of expenditure for the selected project within the Member Priority Initiatives, and detailed the provisional outturn within the Community Safety Budget.

RESOLVED that:

(1) the 2014/15 provisional outturn position for the Public Protection and Safety Portfolio be endorsed by the Portfolio Holder

(2) the Portfolio Holder note the outturn position in respect of the targeted neighbourhood activity project

(3) the Portfolio Holder note the final allocation of Community Safety Expenditure as set out in appendix 3

(4) the Portfolio Holder approve the drawdown of the carry forward sum of £26,570k held in Central Contingency, to help victims of domestic violence as set out in sections 5.6 to 5.8 of the report.

39 DRAFT PORTFOLIO PLAN 2015-2016

Report ES 15044

The Portfolio Holder for Public Protection and Safety (Cllr Kate Lymer) guided Members through the Public Protection and Safety Portfolio Plan 2015/16.

Outcome 1: Keeping Bromley Safe.

It was highlighted that re-offending rates for anti-social behaviour had declined due to the success of Operation Crystal. It was felt that the Mentoring Service was running well, and that this had been successful in enabling young people to remain in education, employment and training.

The Portfolio Holder explained how the Safer Bromley Partnership had now evolved into the Strategic Group and how the dynamics, leadership and governance had changed. It was the now the case that LBB were looking for partners on the Group to take more proactive roles—to this end the Chairman was now the Borough Police Commander, and the lead for ASB was the Bromley Fire Commander.

The Committee heard that one of the objectives to keep Bromley safe was to target the night time anti-social behaviour problem in the Bromley night time economy. This would be a joint LBB and police initiative, and a joint meeting was scheduled with the GP&L Committee on the 14th July 2015 to this end.

It was the case that LBB would be working closely with the police to implement the recommendations of the Gangs Review report, and the Portfolio Holder was waiting for a bid for funding so that LBB and the police could use the services of GAV (Growing Against Violence) which was a highly effective public safety programme aimed at combating gang violence.

In terms of dealing with New Psychoactive Substances, LBB had already experienced some success in this area, but would now be seeking to apply new powers and tools from new legislation being introduced by the government.

Outcome 2: Protecting Consumers:

The Committee noted the loss of staff across the Trading Standards Team. The Portfolio Holder referred to section 2.2 of the report relating to the rapid response service to the victims of door step crimes and scams, and informed the Committee that out of 200 calls to this service, only 50 could be classed as emergency calls. It was noted that concerning the matter of tackling the sale of age restricted products and of preventing consumer detriment by tackling problem traders, routine checks would have to be reduced, and would have to be more intelligence led.

Outcome 3: Regulating Food Safety:

The Portfolio Holder notified the Committee that this was another area of the Portfolio which was suffering from the effects of reduced staffing levels. It was going to be the case that the number of inspections would decrease. Priority would be allocated to high risk food businesses, significant complaints, accident reports and statutory responsibilities. The Executive Director of Environmental and Community Services informed Members that the Food Standards Agency was coming to LBB for a meeting imminently, and then a revised assessment would be undertaken of the statutory minimum services to be provided around food inspections.

Outcome 4: Protecting the Environment:

The Environmental Protection Team had lost 4 staff members, and currently had a total of 11 staff.

When assessing licences, the Portfolio Holder explained to the Committee that LBB could add in a condition that premises license holders had to install a noise limitation device.

With respect to CCTV team targets, the target was for the team to provide three hundred evidence packages per year to the police. The team are currently providing around six per week so were on target.

The Environmental Protection Team (depending on the result of the new lease negotiations) would analyse and expand on the current noise plan for Biggin Hill.

RESOLVED that the Draft Portfolio Plan for 2015/16 be noted, and that the Portfolio Holder adopt the Portfolio Plan.

40 MOPAC UPDATE

Report ES15046

This report was presented to the Committee to update Members with details concerning the annual submission to MOPAC (Mayor's Office for Policing and Crime).

Members noted that the projects concerning domestic abuse would be available to help men as well as women as men were also victims of domestic abuse.

A Member wondered if it would be possible to arrange for a Member of the Committee to visit a refuge to see how they helped victims of domestic abuse.

RESOLVED that the MOPAC update be noted.

41 ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITY OCTOBER 2014--MARCH 2015

Report ES15043

This report was presented to Members to advise of the activity taken by the Public Protection Division during the periods of 1st September 2014 to 31st March 2015 relating to the annual Portfolio Plan and enforcement under delegated powers.

The Committee noted:

- 1. Public Protection Statutory Notices
- 2. Enforcement activity under the Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2003
- 3. Enforcement activity under the Anti-Social Behaviour and Policing and Crime Act 2014
- 4. Enforcement action undertaken under the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000
- 5. Prosecutions undertaken at Bromley Magistrates Court
- 6. Prosecutions pending
- 7. Trading Standards formal cautions
- 8. Licensing Reviews

RESOLVED that the Enforcement Activity update report—October 2014 to March 2015 be noted.

42 SAFER BROMLEY PARTNERSHIP STRATEGIC GROUP UPDATE

The Executive Director of Environmental and Community Services gave an update on the work of the Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group.

He outlined current SBP strategy and direction, and explained the current composition and work of the various sub groups involved. It was highlighted that the SBP was now a body that depended very much on partnership working, and shared responsibilities and burdens.

The Director expanded on recent presentations given to the SBP by the Probation Service and by the Bromley Community Rehabilitation Company. It was noted that the CRC was now responsible for administering Community Payback.

RESOLVED that the MOPAC update be noted.

43 WORK PROGRAMME AND CONTRACTS REGISTER

Report CSD15063

The Committee noted the Work Programme and Contracts Register report.

The following updates to the Work Programme were recommended:

<u>15th September 2015:</u>

- a) Update on Waste 4 Fuel
- b) CCTV Update
- c) Update on PREVENT strategy

3rd November 2015

a) Update/Presentation from Victim Support

20th January 2016

- a) MOPAC update
- b) Enforcement Activity Update

2nd March 2016

- a) Presentation from Bromley Youth Council
- b) Update from SLaM

RESOLVED that the Work Programme and Contracts Register report and the recommended additions and changes to the work programme be noted.

44 PPS PDS VISITS AND DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The Committee noted that the next meeting was scheduled for 15th September 2015.

The Committee noted that a visit was being planned to the newly refurbished fire station in Orpington on the 11th July 2015, and that there was a visit planned to the Community Rehabilitation Company in Orpington in September 2015.

The Meeting ended at 9.15 pm

Chairman

This page is left intentionally blank